

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

One Hundred and Fifth Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with
the Revised Statutes of 1964, Title 3 Section 164, Subsection 6.

THE KNOWLTON AND MCLEARY COMPANY
FARMINGTON, MAINE
1971

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE
AS PASSED BY THE
One Hundred and Fifth Legislature
1971

the member; or his beneficiary, if his widow, if the member is survived by a widow and a child or children under age 18, jointly, shall be entitled to an annual sum equal to the current annual salary of the member; or his beneficiary, if his child or children, if the member is survived only by a child or children under age 18, jointly, shall receive an annual sum equal to the current annual salary of the member.

When the beneficiaries are a widow and child or children under age 18, they shall be paid the annual sum equal to the current annual salary only until the youngest surviving child reaches age 18, at which time the annual sum paid shall be reduced to $\frac{2}{3}$ of the annual salary of the member.

When the beneficiaries are a child or children under age 18, he or they shall be paid the annual sum equal to the current annual salary only until the youngest surviving child reaches age 18, at which time all payments shall cease.

Effective September 23, 1971

Chapter 85

AN ACT Relating to Certain Penalties Under Fish and Game Laws.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., T. 12, § 1962, amended. Section 1962 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

§ 1962. Defacement of notices

Whoever willfully mutilates, defaces or destroys any notice, rule or regulation of the commissioner, posted in conformity with chapters 301 to 335, shall be ~~punished by a fine of not more than \$50~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 2. R. S., T. 12, § 1984, amended. The first sentence of section 1984 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as enacted by section 1 of chapter 414 of the public laws of 1969, is amended to read as follows:

Any person who violates this chapter or any rules or regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Inland Fisheries and Game shall be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$100~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060 for each offense.

Sec. 3. R. S., T. 12, § 2101, amended. The last sentence of the 2nd paragraph of section 2101 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, under the caption Back Bay Sanctuary, Portland, is repealed as follows:

~~Whoever violates any provision of this paragraph shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$40, and costs, for each offense.~~

Sec. 4. R. S., T. 12, § 2101, amended. The last sentence of the 8th paragraph of section 2101 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, under the caption Glencove Sanctuary; Rockport, is repealed as follows:

~~Whoever violates any provision of this paragraph shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$5 nor more than \$50, and costs for each offense, or by imprisonment for 30 days, or by both.~~

Sec. 5. R. S., T. 12, § 2101, amended. The last sentence of the 12th paragraph of section 2101 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, under the caption Kineo Point Sanctuary, is repealed as follows:

~~Whoever violates the provisions of this paragraph shall pay a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$40, and costs, for each offense.~~

Sec. 6. R. S., T. 12, § 2101, amended. The last sentence of the 14th paragraph of section 2101 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, under the caption Megunticook Lake and Vicinity Sanctuary, is repealed as follows:

~~Whoever violates any provision of this paragraph shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$30, and costs, for each offense.~~

Sec. 7. R. S., T. 12, § 2101, amended. The last sentence of the 24th paragraph of section 2101 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, under the caption Prout's Neck; Richmond's Island; Cape Elizabeth Sanctuary, is repealed as follows:

~~Whoever violates any provision of this paragraph shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$40, and costs, for each offense.~~

Sec. 8. R. S., T. 12, § 2101, amended. The last sentence of the 27th paragraph of section 2101 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, under the caption Rangeley Lake Sanctuary, is repealed as follows:

~~Whoever violates any provision of this paragraph shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$300, and costs for each offense, or by imprisonment for 60 days, or by both.~~

Sec. 9. R. S., T. 12, § 2202, amended. Section 2202 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

§ 2202. Tampering with, injuring or destroying fishways

Whoever without authority from the commissioner tampers with a fishway, closes a fishway to fish migration, introduces foreign objects into a fishway, or damages or destroys a fishway, shall be ~~punished by a fine of not more than \$100~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 10. R. S., T. 12, § 2204, amended. Section 2204 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 8-A of chapter 448 of the public laws of 1965, is further amended to read as follows:

§ 2204. Tampering with, injuring or destroying dams

Whoever without authority from the commissioner tampers with any dam owned or operated by the department, including dams in a fish hatchery or rearing station, opens or closes gates or sluiceways, adds or removes flashboards, or otherwise damages or destroys such dams, shall be ~~punished by a fine of not more than \$100~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 11. R. S., T. 12, § 2205, amended. Section 2205 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

§ 2205. Bulldozing of rivers, streams and brooks

Whoever bulldozes or causes to be bulldozed between the banks of a river, stream or brook in excess of 500 feet in length in any one mile, measured along the thread of the stream, without first obtaining permission therefor from the commissioner, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$100 nor more than ~~\$500~~ \$1,000.

Sec. 12. R. S., T. 12, § 2253, amended. The last paragraph of section 2253 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Any person who fails to comply with this section shall, on conviction, be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$100, or by imprisonment for not more than 30 days, or by both~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 13. R. S., T. 12, § 2254, amended. The last paragraph of section 2254 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Any violation of any provision of this section shall be ~~punishable by a fine of \$50 and costs~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 14. R. S., T. 12, § 2353, amended. The last paragraph of section 2353 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Any person convicted of violating any of the provisions of this section shall be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$100 and costs, which fine and costs shall not be suspended, or by imprisonment for not more than 90 days, or by both~~ in accordance with the penalty provided in section 2455.

Sec. 15. R. S., T. 12, § 2453, amended. The last sentence of section 2453 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Whoever violates any provision of this section shall, upon conviction, be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$300, or by imprisonment for not less than 30 days nor more than 6 months~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 16. R. S., T. 12, § 2455, amended. The last sentence of section 2455 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Any person convicted of a violation under this section shall be punished ~~for the first offense~~ by a fine of not less than \$200 ~~and costs~~ nor more than ~~\$400~~ \$1,000 ~~and costs~~, which fine ~~and costs~~ shall not be suspended, and an additional penalty of not more than 30 days in jail, at the discretion of the court ~~and for a 2nd or subsequent offense, by a fine of not less than \$400 and costs nor more than \$800 and costs, and 30 days in jail, which fine, costs and jail sentence shall not be suspended, and an additional penalty of not more than 60 days in jail, at the discretion of the court.~~

Sec. 17. R. S., T. 12, § 2460, amended. The last sentence of section 2460 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Whoever violates any of the provisions of this section shall be ~~punished by a fine of not more than \$300 and costs or by imprisonment for not more than 90 days, or by both~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 18. R. S., T. 12, § 2557, amended. The last sentence of section 2557 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as repealed and replaced by section 23 of chapter 448 of the public laws of 1965 and amended by section 13 of chapter 494 of the public laws of 1967, is further amended to read as follows:

Any violation of this section shall be ~~punishable by a fine of not less than \$200 nor more than \$300 for each offense~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 19. R. S., T. 12, § 2560, amended. Section 2560 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as last amended by chapter 181 of the public laws of 1967, is further amended to read as follows:

§ 2560. Penalties

Whoever violates any provision of sections 2552 and 2553 shall ~~pay a fine of not less than \$20 nor more than \$30~~ be subject to the penalties provided in section 3060, and costs of prosecution, for each offense; and in addition thereto, \$5 for each fish taken, caught, killed or had in possession in violation of any provision of said sections.

Sec. 20. R. S., T. 12, § 2751, amended. The last paragraph of section 2751 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 39 of chapter 404 of the public laws of 1967, is further amended to read as follows:

A violation of this section shall be ~~punishable by a fine of not less than \$20 or more than \$50~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060, and costs, for each offense, and in addition thereto, \$1 for each fish sold or purchased.

Sec. 21. R. S., T. 12, § 2751-A, amended. The last paragraph of section 2751-A of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as enacted by section 29 of chapter 448 of the public laws of 1965, is amended to read as follows:

A violation of this section shall be ~~punishable by a fine of not less than \$100~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 22. R. S., T. 12, § 2752, amended. The last sentence of the first paragraph of section 2752 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

A violation shall be subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 23. R. S., T. 12, § 2752, amended. The next to last paragraph of section 2752 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 31 of chapter 448 of the public laws of 1965, is further amended to read as follows:

Any violation of this section shall be ~~punishable by a fine of not less than \$20 nor more than \$300~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060, and costs of prosecution, for each offense, and in addition thereto, \$1 for each fish unlawfully taken, caught, killed or in possession of any violator of this section.

Sec. 24. R. S., T. 12, § 2754, amended. The 2nd paragraph of section 2754 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Any violation of this section shall be punishable by a fine of not less than \$100 nor more than ~~\$300~~ \$1,000, and costs, which fine and costs shall not be suspended. On the 2nd offense the fine shall be not less than \$100 nor more than ~~\$300~~ \$1,000, and costs, and not less than 15 days nor more than ~~60~~ 90 days in jail, which fine, costs and jail sentence shall not be suspended.

Sec. 25. R. S., T. 12, § 2755, amended. Section 2755 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

§ 2755. Stocking of lakes and streams without consent

Whoever introduces fish of any kind into any waters of the State by means of live fish, or otherwise, except upon written permission of the commissioner, shall be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$50 nor more than \$500~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 26. R. S., T. 12, § 2756, amended. Section 2756 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 32 of chapter 448 of the public laws of 1965, is further amended to read as follows:

§ 2756. Advance baiting

Whoever deposits any meat, bones, dead fish, or parts of the same, or other food for fish in any of the inland waters of the State for the purpose of luring fish, known as "advance baiting," shall be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$20 nor more than \$30~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060, and costs of prosecution, for each offense.

Sec. 27. R. S., T. 12, § 2801, amended. Section 2801 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended by adding at the end the following new paragraph:

Any person convicted of violating any of the provisions of this section shall be punished in accordance with the penalty provided in section 2455.

Sec. 28. R. S., T. 12, § 2953-A, amended. The first sentence of section 2953-A of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as enacted by chapter 116 of the public laws of 1969, is amended to read as follows:

Whoever, while on a hunting trip or in the pursuit of wild game or game birds, negligently or carelessly or willfully shoots and wounds, or kills any domestic animals or birds, shall be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$50 nor more than \$200 or by imprisonment for not more than 30 days, or by both~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060.

Sec. 29. R. S., T. 12, § 3060, amended. The first paragraph of section 3060 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 42 of chapter 404 of the public laws of 1967, is further amended to read as follows:

Whoever violates any of the provisions of chapters 301 to 335 and Title 7, chapter 707 and Title 7, sections 3601 and 3602 and Title 32, chapter 65, or rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or rules and regulations heretofore promulgated and still in force and effect, excepting only those for the violation of which specific penalties have been provided, shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$20 nor more than ~~\$300~~ \$500 and costs, or by imprisonment for not more than 90 days, or by both, except as hereafter noted:

Sec. 30. R. S., T. 12, § 3060, sub-§ 2, amended. Subsection 2 of section 3060 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

2. **Violation of § 2451.** Whoever violates any of the provisions of the first 2 paragraphs of section 2451 shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$200 nor more than ~~\$300~~ \$1,000 and costs, or by imprisonment for not more than 90 days, or by both.

Sec. 31. R. S., T. 12, § 3061, amended. The last paragraph of section 3061 of Title 12 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

Any officer or other person who shall receive any fine or penalty, or any part thereof, for the violation of any fish or game law, or rule or regulation, or any fees for licenses issued by authority of any inland fish and game law and shall neglect for more than 30 days to pay the same as provided, shall be ~~punished by a fine of not less than \$50 nor more than \$100~~ subject to the penalties provided in section 3060 and costs of prosecution for each offense.

Effective September 23, 1971

Chapter 86

AN ACT Creating County Commissioner Districts for Hancock County.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., T. 30, § 105-D, additional. Title 30 of the Revised Statutes is amended by adding a new section 105-D, to read as follows:

§ 105-D. Creation of Hancock County Commissioner Districts

Hancock County shall be divided into the following 3 districts:

Commissioner District No. 1 consisting of the municipalities and unorganized territory of Amherst, Aurora, Blue Hill, Eastbrook, Ellsworth, Franklin, Gouldsboro, Mariaville, Great Pond Plantation, Osborn Plt., Otis, Sorrento, Sullivan, Surry, Waltham, Winter Harbor, T16, T22, T28, T32, T34, T35, T39, T40, T41 Middle Division, T3, T4 North Division, T7, T8, T9 and T10 South Division.